
 

 
 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Monday 4 October 2021 
 

Licensing Panel 
 

Tuesday 12 October 2021, 1.00 pm 
 

Theatre - The Wave Centre, Maryport 
 

Membership: 
  
  
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Hilary Harrington 
Councillor Peter Kendall  
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Lee Jardine on 01900 702556. 

 

Agenda 
 
1. Election of Chair   
 

 To elect a Chair for the ensuing meeting. 
  

2. Apologies for Absence   
 

3. Declaration of Interests   
 

 Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 

  

4. Questions   
 

 To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm on a working day, allowing two clear 
working days before the day of the meeting. 
 
 
 
 

  



5. To consider representations received in relation to an application for a 
premises licence  (Pages 3 - 58) 

 

Procedure at Licensing Panel  (Pages 59 - 60) 
 

 
 

 
 
Chief Executive 
 

 
Date of Next Meeting: 

 
Friday 15 October 2021, 3.30 pm 

Council Chamber, Allerdale House 
 
 



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Licensing Panel – 12 October 2021 

 

To consider representations received in relation to an 
application for a premises licence 

 
 
Portfolio holder   Councillor Colin Sharpe  
     Finance and Legal  

Report from    Deborah Fletcher, Licensing and Compliance Officer 

Wards affected   Broughton St Bridget’s  

Is this a key decision  No 
 

 
 

1.0 The reason for the decision 

 
1.1 To consider representations received in relation to an application for a premises 

licence under section 18(3) of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 

2.0  Recommendation 

 
2.1 The Panel should consider all the information contained in the report. They should 

make a decision from the options available in paragraph 7.0 taking into account 
information received from the applicant, other persons and any relevant legislation 
or guidance. 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

 
3.1 The Licensing Act 2003 allows for interested parties and responsible authorities to 

make representations for or against an application. Representations must outline 
relevant information on how an application will promote or undermine the licensing 
objectives.  

3.2 Representations were received against the application and they must be considered 
in line with section 18(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 (The Act). 

3.3 The representations were originally considered by the licensing panel on 2 
December 2020. The panel determined the application and it was granted with an 
additional condition.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



 

3.4 Broughton Parish Council were aggrieved by that decision and appealed to the 
Magistrates’ Court under Schedule 5 Part 1 Paragraph 2 of the Licensing Act 2003.  

3.5 The case was heard at West Cumbria Magistrates’ Court on 27 May 2021. The 
appeal was allowed and remitted back to the licensing panel to reconsider under 
section 181 of the Licensing Act 2003.  

3.6 The licensing panel must now reconsider the application and use the information 
contained in this report to determine the application.  

4.0  Content  

 

4.1 The applicants are Beth Faulder and Ray Faulder.  

4.2 The application relates to the premises known as Ponderosa, Broughton Lodge, 
Little Broughton. The plan of the premises can be found at Appendix A.  

 
4.3 The applicants have given the following description of the premises: 

THE PREMISES IS A COMPLETELY BLANK CANVAS, WHICH IS A FIELD 
WHICH OVERLOOKS THE LAKE DISTRICT MOUNTAINS. THE FIELD WILL BE 
HIRED OUT BY THE COUPLE AND USED AS INSTRUCTED BY US. WE HAVE 
SITUATED WHERE THE EVENT WILL TAKE PLACE ON THE DESIGNATED 
AREA WITH IN THE FIELD. THE ALCOHOL WILL BE PLACED BEHIND THE 
TENT IN A LOCKED VAN AND ONLY ACCESSED BY THE PERSONAL LICENCE 
HOLDER. 

 
4.4 The application is to allow live music, recorded music and the sale of alcohol in the 

following terms:  

Live and Recorded Music  

Monday to Sunday 11:00 to 23:00 

Sale of Alcohol  

Monday to Sunday 10:00 to 23:30  

4.5  The applicants have given various measures that they will use to promote the 
licensing objectives should a licence be granted. This includes a noise assessment 
report, wedding diversification report and the list of proposed conditions usually 
found in the premises licence application. Those documents can be found at 
Appendix B.  

4.6 Cumbria Constabulary and Environmental Health responded to the application and 
suggested measures which they felt would promote the licensing objectives. The 
applicants have accepted those conditions and, if granted, they should be added to 
the licence. The details of the agreed conditions can be found at Appendix C. 

Page 4



4.7 As well as responsible authorities, any other person can make representations for 
or against an application. Three representations have been received against the 
application. They are from: 

 

Broughton 
Parish Council  

9 October 
2020  

Appendix D 

Stephen 
Murray  

9 October 
2020 

Appendix E 

Cllr Nicky 
Cockburn  

12 October 
2020  

Appendix F  

  
 
4.8 The Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 states that a 

person may request that a representative make their representation to the licensing 
authority on their behalf. The representative can be a legal representative, a friend, 
a Member of Parliament or a local ward or parish councillor.  

 
4.9 Cllr Nicky Cockburn has made a representation on behalf of residents of her ward, 

Broughton St Bridget’s. Cllr Cockburn is aware of the identity of the persons making 
representations, but those details have not been passed to the Licensing Authority 
as part of the representation.  

 
4.10 Allerdale Borough Council’s Licensing Policy 2016-2021 states that representations 

can be made by persons who are democratically elected such as borough, county, 
town or parish councillors, or a Member of Parliament. It confirms that such 
representatives are free to make representations, and no specific evidence of being 
asked to represent any other person will be required.  

 
4.11 The application was heard by the licensing panel on 2 December 2020. The draft 

minutes of that meeting are available at Appendix G. The panel granted the 
application with modified conditions.  

 
4.12 The decision notice was delivered to the applicant and all persons that had made 

relevant representations. There is then a period of 21 days to allow for an appeal if 
any party to the hearing is aggrieved by the decision of the panel.    

  
4.13 Allerdale Borough Council received notification from the Magistrates’ Court that 

Broughton Parish Council had lodged an appeal against the decision to grant the 
licence.  

 
4.14 The case was heard at West Cumbria Magistrates Court on 27 May 2021. The 

Magistrates allowed the appeal and the full decision is at Appendix H. 
 
4.15 Allerdale Borough Council had serious concerns about the validity of the court 

order, and its ability to fulfil the terms of that order in full, for the following reasons:  
 

 The Licensing Authority did not believe that it was a licensing requirement to 
determine whether someone has the use of a bridleway 

 The Licensing Authority is not permitted to invite representations, yet was being 
asked to consult with non-statutory consultees 

Page 5



 The Licensing Authority understood that any planning applications are not relevant 
licensing conditions 

 
4.16 It was the Licensing Authority’s view that to carry out the requirements of the Order 

would be unlawful within the remit of the licensing legislation, and the opinion of an 
experienced licensing barrister (Counsel) has since been requested and received, 
which confirms that this is the case.   

 
4.17 Counsel has confirmed that the magistrates’ court decision is challengeable by way 

of a High Court ‘case stated’ appeal.  However effectively, this would only 
determine that the court should re-hear the appeal once again, applying the correct 
legal test.  Counsel does not consider that the High Court would be able to 
substitute its own decision and it would be likely to take around 6-12 months to hear 
the matter in court.  It would also come at considerable expense. 

 
4.18 Following receipt of specialist legal advice, the Licensing Authority therefore sought 

to give effect to the decision of the court insofar as it was lawfully able to do so.  
The Licensing Authority cannot give effect to the aspects of the judgement that 
required it to go back and start a fresh consultation as there is simply no legal 
power to do so.  Similarly there is no legal power to consult named parties. 

 
4.19 The Licensing Authority has convened this licensing panel at the request of the 

court, however in light of the advice, only representations from those parties 
involved in the original panel hearing are able to put forward information.   

 
4.20 The course of action taken by the Licensing Authority is seen to be the fairest and 

most pragmatic route to overcome the difficulties faced, giving all of the parties who 
were involved in the initial hearing, to put forward their representations. 

 
4.21 Should the licensing panel allow the application then the appellant is free to appeal 

to the magistrates’ court.  Similarly should the licensing panel refuse the application, 
then the applicant can appeal to the magistrates’ court. 

 
4.22 The Legal Team Manager at the magistrates’ court has been fully appraised 

regarding the legal advice received and of the Licensing Authority’s intentions in 
terms of the process going forwards. 

 
4.23 The application should be considered with only the licensing objectives in mind. 

Matters which fall outside of the licensing objectives should not be considered and 
should not form part of any decision.  

5.0 Legislation and Policy 

 
5.1 The Licensing Act 2003 has four licensing objectives –  
 
 The prevention of crime and disorder; 
 Public safety; 
 The prevention of public nuisance; and 
 The protection of children from harm.  
 

Page 6



5.2 The application process includes circulating the application to all the responsible 
authorities. It also includes advertising the application in the local press and a notice 
on the premises. This is to allow for representations to be made for or against the 
application. Representations should be about the likely effect of the grant of the 
licence on the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives.  

 
5.3 The Licensing Authority must hold a hearing to consider any representations made 

unless all parties agree that a hearing isn’t necessary. It is considered necessary to 
hold a hearing to consider the representations in this case.  

 
5.4 The Allerdale Statement of Licensing Policy 2016-2021 section 7.1 states that, 

when considering applications, the Panel should have regard to the Act and its 
objectives, Government guidance, supporting regulations, representations, duties 
and obligations under other legislation and the statement of Licensing Policy. 

 
5.5 Paragraph 7.2 of the Policy states that an application should be considered on its 

individual merits.  
 
5.6 Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 provides 

advice on considering if a representation is relevant. It recommends in borderline 
cases the benefit of the doubt about any aspect of a representation should be given 
to the person making that representation. The subsequent hearing will provide an 
opportunity for the person making the representation to amplify and clarify it. 

6.0 Implications and Impact 

6.1 Finance/Resource implications 

 
The applicants have paid a non-refundable fee of £100.00.  
 

6.2 Legal and governance implications  

 
The applicant or any person who has made relevant representations to the application is 
entitled to make an appeal if they are aggrieved by the decision of the Council. That 
person has the right of appeal to a Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the decision.  

6.3 Equality impacts 

 
Impact Assessment not completed.   

6.4 Health and Safety impacts 

 
None. 

6.5 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

 
The licensing objectives adequately deal with any potential impacts on health, wellbeing 
and community safety. 

Page 7



6.6 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

Not applicable in respect of the licensing objectives.   

6.7 Other significant implications 

None.  

7.0  Options available to the Licensing Regulatory Panel  

 
7.1 The Panel must consider the representations and take such steps as it considers 

necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  
 
7.2 The steps available are: 
 

a) Grant the licence subject to the conditions mentioned in the operating schedule 
modified to such extent as the authority considers necessary for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives, and any mandatory condition.  

 
b) Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the 

application relates; 
 

c) Refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor 
 

d) Reject the application 
 
7.3 The Licensing Panel should give reasons for its decision. 
  

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

A Premises plan  

B Documents provided by the applicant to promote the licensing 
objectives.  

C Agreed conditions with Cumbria Constabulary and 
Environmental Health  

D Representation – Broughton Parish Council  

E Representation – Stephen Murray  

F Representation – Cllr Nicky Cockburn, Broughton St Bridget’s 
Ward 

G Draft minutes from the Licensing Panel 2 December 2020 

H Court decision 27 May 2021 

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

  

 

Page 8



 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Deborah Fletcher  
Licensing and Compliance Officer 
Deborah.fletcher@allerdale.gov.uk 
01900 702862  

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



2400 3900 5500

4716

4113

1522

2829

2852

Track

80.8m

BM 80.89m

80.8m

87.5m

BM 92.85m

91.4m

1

Tranby

Track

Glen Cottage

Rose Cottage

73.0m

Track

Opencast Mine
(Coal)

69.3m

71.1m

66.7m

75.3m

62.5m

BM 63.43m

Issues

Drain

Track

Ruins

Track

100.0m

Stockmoor

Stockmoor
Hall

Issues

Issues

(Ruin)
Broughton Lodge

533347

532700

532900

533000

533100

533200

533300

306100
306100

306200
306200

306300

306400

306500

306600

306700

Project Details Field Broughton Moor
N 532974 E - 306679
Grid Reference - NY06679 32974

Project

Ref

Scale

Client

BFLP - 002

1/2500

Beth Faulder

Date 16th July 2020

Proposed Licence Plan
Proposed Site & Block Plans

Rev A

Private site access road which adjoins the main
adopted highway between Broughton Main Street &
A594

Field access road - 4.5m wide gate
entrance to field

Site parking allocation / hard standing directly
adjoining the highway  - 114m x 8.6m = 980m2 - Min
38# car parking spaces

P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Agreed Conditions - Environmental Health  
 

All recommendations as stated in the Noise Assessment Report Ref RSA 325/2020 Version 3 shall be 

undertaken and a Noise Management Plan drawn up and followed: 

This includes the requirement that an electronic sound level limiter with a fine tonal adjustment 

shall be fitted and operational  to the amplified PA system at the location and set at an absolute limit 

of 88dB LAeq60 sec. 

The limiter shall not be readjusted and/ or the associated electrical supply  bypassed by any 

performing musicians and/or DJ.  

The loudspeakers and / or  stage shall be orientated  so that they face in an Easterly direction.  

The licence holder or their representative shall conduct regular assessments of the noise coming 

from the premises on every occasion the premises are used for regulated entertainment and shall 

take steps to reduce the level of noise where it is likely to cause a disturbance to local residents. A 

written record shall be made of those assessments in a log book kept for that purpose and shall 

include the time and date of the checks, the person making them and the results including any 

remedial action. 

Regards 

David Copeland 

Environmental Health Officer (Environmental Protection) 

Governance and Regulatory Services 

  

Allerdale Borough Council, Allerdale House, Workington, Cumbria, CA14 3YJ 

T: 0303 123 1702   01900 702580 

E : david.copeland@allerdale.gov.uk 

W: www.allerdale.gov.uk 

  

Making Allerdale a great place to live, work and visit 

 

Page 17

mailto:david.copeland@allerdale.gov.uk
http://www.allerdale.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Representation – Broughton Parish 
Council  
 
Broughton Parish Council only found out about this licencing application accidentally 
after a member of the public bought it to the attention of the Parish Council.  Firstly, 
the Parish Council would like to raise concern that there doesn't appear to be any 
statutory consultation with local residents or the Parish Council?  I appreciate that 
site notices may have been erected but given this is currently a ruined building in the 
middle of a large area of green space i'm not clear where the site notices would 
actually have been erected? Can you clarify? And in the current Covid 19 pandemic 
a lot of people aren't accessing paper media as they once would do, and I have been 
unable to find any details of this licence application online, therefore it seems that the 
consultation process is almost in name only? 
 
Having said the above Broughton Parish Councillors have considered this licence 
application via email as we didn't have time to convene a meeting with the 
timescales remaining to the Council when they were notified about the licence 
application, and the Parish Council have the below comments: 
 
-Noise- The application states that noise limiters will be used and noise managed, 
however can this be included as a formal condition if the licence is approved, 
including on site automatic cut off devices to be installed if the noise exceeds eg. 
34dBA. The noise will carry significantly if only contained by marquees, and this 
needs to be covered by appropriate conditions to prevent local disturbance.  
-Time periods- To have amplified music in a tenant in a rural area, in relatively close 
proximity to residential developments after 11pm is unacceptable. Any approved 
licence should reflect this.   
-Wider Site Plan- How does this licence application fit with the wider plans for the 
applicants entire site? The ABC Planning Department have recently placed on 
hold/paused a planning application for the Derwent Forest Site until the applicant 
provides a masterplan for the whole site to prevent incremental development and 
creep on the site. Broughton Parish Council would like this same approach to be 
taken here? As there is currently as the Parish Council understands an 
entertainment venue included as part of the Derwent Forest development, and a 
possible entertainment facility planed for the holiday caravans/lodges on Soddy Gap, 
this would potentially be a third hospitality venue in a currently green area 
surrounding the villages of Great & Little Broughton (and Broughton Moor/Dovenby 
etc). 
-Planning-Is Planning approval required for this proposal? The Parish Council 
appreciate the marquees are temporary structures but if the applicant is planning on 
using marquees for more than 28 days per year, on what is a green in appearance 
brownfield site, is this not a change of use, and therefore is planning permission not 
required? Is the applicant intending to install any permanent infrastructure on the 
site? According to the ABC planning website there are currently no planning 
applications for a wedding venue on this site?  
-Numbers of people- Will there be a cap on the maximum number of people allowed 
on the site?  

Page 19



-Waste/rubbish- The site is currently a ruined building and green fields, will 
conditions be included regarding waste disposal, human effluent (there are no toilets 
on site), and what conditions will be imposed about non damage to the 
site/reparations if required if damage does occur?  
-What is the opinion of the Highways Department with potentially having significant 
volumes of vehicles leaving and re entering the highway from what is currently a field 
site? Is this a safe access/egress point? What risks are their of mud etc being 
transferred to the highways surface and being a possible hazard?  
-Highways- In the opinion of the Parish Council there is no safe access routes for 
vehicles to the site, all routes involve passing through one of the settlements in local 
proximity e.g. Broughton, Seaton or Broughton Moor, all of these villages have 
already identified highways issues with volumes of traffic, this will only increase the 
traffic on small rural roads, that pass through residential settlements with 
infrastructure that is currently over stretched.  
-Wildlife? There is current a herd of Roe Deer, Badgers, Bats and migrating birds? 
What impact will the issuing of this licence have on these species, in particular with 
regard to noise, and the fact the applicant intends to install/provide lighting on what 
is current a dark green field site? This may will have a negative impact on wildlife 
and birds? Soddy Gap Nature Reserve and Community Asset is very close to this 
side, and this proposal is likely to have a negative impact on the site.  
-Safe access/egress- What requirements would the licence impose on the licence 
holder to ensure that guests/clients are not leaving the site intoxicated and driving? 
There are no accommodation providers within walking distance, and no public 
transport? By the nature of weddings there is likely to be alcohol being consumed? 
Also does this mean that cars are going to be left on the site over night?  
-Duration/Length of the licence- The Parish Council are not per-se against the 
proposal (subject to clarity of the above issues) but feel that a 7 day a week, 14 
hours a day licence would be over- development of the site and would be a 
disproportionate burden on the local area. If approved the licence should be limited 
to 2-3 days per week, with the live amplified music ceasing by 11pm at the latest. 
 
I would appreciate it if you could acknowledge receipt of this email, and I look 
forward to hearing back from you regarding the queries raised within it.  
 
Kind regards 
 

Becx Carter  

 

Broughton Parish Clerk 

Mbl: 07786678283 

broughtonparishclerk@hotmail.com 
 

Page 20

mailto:broughtonparishclerk@hotmail.com


Representation – Stephen Murray 
 

I would like to register my objection to this application near to our home STOCKMOOR 

HALL as noise from this nearby FIELD for were the application is for would greatly affect 

our situation, and more importantly noise nuisance, access and egress, public safety ( 

transport vehicles on bridleways) and parking (which I would presume would be in the field 

the application is for) that in turn resulting in further noise pollution. 

  

I require a reply to this  so I know you have received and registered my Objection. 

  

Yours Sincerely. 

  

Stephen Murray. 

 

 
Further to my previous objections made I would also like to add that there is NO Electricity to this 
site so any such proposed use of a wedding / Music venue would require a powerful Diesel 
Generator this in turn creating its own Noise and pollution, neither as far as I am aware a 
suitable Water supply, the position of this venue is in the middle of reclaimed open cast mining area, 
and an area of footpaths and tracks are used by the general Public, cyclists, and horse's (the Tracks 
are the only way in for vehicles) and are not suitable for any heavy traffic use. 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Representation – Cllr Nicky Cockburn  
 

Ponderosa Licensing Application. 

 

As a Ward Councillor, I have been contacted by a number of residents regarding the above 

application as a venue with live and recorded music and alcohol sales. 

 

My own objections are as follows: 

 

Noise 

The area identified raises a lot of concerns as this area, a community asset, which is used as a place 

for quiet walks, bird watching (it is a recognised RSPB site) horse riding, photographers and joggers 

etc., and as such music and alcohol sales will result in a noise nuisance and because of this, a loss of 

amenity. 

 

Marquees/tents cannot reduce the noise which will travel a great distance. From my own 

experience, when we lived in Lanty Close in Brigham, at night we were often kept awake by wagons, 

especially when reversing on this site before it was turned into a haven for wildlife. The sound will 

travel a great distance. 

 

The noise will affect residents’ enjoyment of this area and residents right to enjoy their own homes 

and gardens. 

 

In addition the access and egress from this site will result in further noise disruption by vehicles and 

taxis going to and from the site picking up attendees. Again this noise will travel because of the very 

nature of the site. 

 

Public Safety 

 

This site’s public footpaths and bridleways are used by dog walkers, walkers, joggers, novice child 

Page 23



cyclists, horse riders and families whose children who really should be allowed a certain amount of 

freedom. 

 

Vehicles will be used to transport people to and from the site on a registered public right of way. As 

such the people do not envisage meeting vehicles, it was a hard fought for right and there are 

expectations of safety from vehicles. Children and adults could face a real risk of harm by mixing the 

two in this way. 

 

Section 34(1) of the Road Traffic Act 1988 (RTA 1988) provides that anyone driving a mechanically 

propelled vehicle, for example a motor car, on a road that is a footpath, bridleway or restricted 

byway is guilty of an offence unless it can be shown that there is a private right in place for people to 

use the accessway to gain vehicular access to their property. The burden of proving that there is 

such 

 

a vehicular right of way in place rests with the defendant. 

Has this proof been submitted with the application? 

 

It is my understanding that guests/bands/marquee erectors/toilet facilities providers/ delivery vans 

etc., will not have an automatic right to drive over the public right of way. 

 

I have tried to summarise the main objections from other residents and site users that I have been 

asked to represent, these are as follows: 

 

Noise 

• Unacceptable in a quiet area, it’s an area for tranquillity, peaceful area, quiet area for 

mental wellbeing. 

• Special area intended as a quiet area for people to enjoy for leisure purposes. The 

importance of preserving such areas has been stressed recently by prominent individuals. 

• Will affect wildlife, bats and rare birds. It’s tranquillity would be shattered. It’s a nature 

reserve. 

• Loud music is very annoying in the countryside. 

Page 24



• The area has no natural noise buffer and tents do not dampen the noise. 

• Nuisance to villagers in Broughton, Broughton Moor and the noise will travel a considerable 

distance. 

• The village is a quiet place to live. 

• To “bus” people to the venue would be an inevitable noise nuisance 

 

Crime and Disorder 

 

• Concern over alcohol fuelled guests getting home safely, no accommodation on site or 

within walking distance. 

• Littering and public using footpaths feeling intimidated and intoxicated guests creating a 

public nuisance, anti-social behaviours. 

• It’s illegal to drive any engine powered vehicle along a public bridleway. 

 

Public safety 

 

• Vehicular access and egress via the bridleways could be dangerous, users don’t expect 

vehicles. 

• Extra traffic generated going through the village is a problem. 

• Extra traffic passing through the entrance to the primary school. 

• Much used recreational public right of way. 

• Using rights of way as access could be a dangerous to the many walkers. 

• Access for emergency vehicles obstructed by parked vehicles. 

• Horse riders, cyclists , dog walkers, families and children use the public rights of way on a 

daily basis and transporting large numbers of people to the site will be a public safety issue. 

 

Other 

 

• No objection to use as a wedding venue, but should be limited to 2-3 days max music 6 hrs 

and noise abatement measures strictly enforced. 

• There is already a successful popular site for festivals etc nr Wellington farm with safe and 

Page 25



easy access. 

• Already a wedding venue in the village sat Broughton Craggs hotel and 3 pubs 

• Creating noise, large gatherings and traffic would spoil this amenity. 

• Resident and migrating birds will be affected. 

Yours sincerely, 

Nicky Cockburn 

Page 26



At a meeting of the Licensing Panel held in Zoom Virtual Meeting on Wednesday 2 
December 2020 at 2.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Allan Daniels Councillor Peter Gaston 
Councillor Alan Smith  
 
 
Staff Present 
 
D Fletcher, J Irving, L Jardine and J Morgan 
 
 
224. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor Gaston was elected Chair for the ensuing meeting 
 

225. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

226. Questions  
 
None received 
 

227. To consider representations received in relation to an application for a 
premises licence  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report to consider 
representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence. 
 
This report concerns an application for a premises licence for the premises 
known as Ponderosa, Broughton Lodge, Little Broughton, Cumbria.  
 
The applicants are Beth Faulder and Ray Faulder. 
 
The applicants have applied for a premises licence with the following 
description:  
 
The premises is a completely blank canvas, which is a field which overlooks the 
Lake District mountains. The field will be hired out by the couple and used as 
instructed by us. We have situated where the event will take place on the 
designated area within the field. The alcohol will be placed behind the tent in a 
locked van and only accessed by the personal licence holder. 
 
The application is to allow live music, recorded music and the sale of alcohol in 
the following terms:  
 
Live and Recorded Music  Monday to Sunday 11:00 to 23:00  
 

Page 27



Sale of Alcohol  Monday to Sunday 10:00 to 23:30  
 
3 representations were received in respect of the application. 
 
Members were then advised of the options available and that they were to 
decide in line with the licensing objectives. Members also had plans of the 
application site. 
 
A noise assessment and wedding diversification report were also attached to 
the members reports. 
 
Cumbria Constabulary and Environmental Health recommended conditions, the 
applicant agreed to implement these conditions if the Licence was granted. 
 
The applicant (Beth Faulder) made representations, explaining the background 
for the application.  
 
The proposal is that the site be used for wedding receptions, encouraging a 
new style of wedding with the couple being able to plan all aspect of the day. All 
plans will be presented to the events coordinator for approval to ensure 
irresponsible activities do not go ahead. 
 
Other aspects of the wedding reception include the option for the couple to 
spend time away from the wedding to enjoy views and have a walk. 
 
The venue will be part of a family business, and the package can include 
photography, as one of the applicants is a professional photographer. 
 
The applicant went on to explain that the land has been neglected for 20 years 
and the land is currently used for livestock. This application will ensure 
diversification of the site and enable to applicants to secure funding for essential 
works to the site.  
 
Since farming the land the applicant explained that criminal activity has reduced 
and it planting crops have created a habitat for wildlife to return. 
 
The applicant then went on to explain that they have worked with the Police and 
Local Authority and a noise limit has been agreed. The applicant is also keen to 
work with the local community to improve the green area and to gain support. 
 
The applicant explained that Soddy Gap will not close and clarified that the 
application is for one field, which will be a secure site and include a secure car 
park. The bridleway would not be obstructed and notices will be displayed in 
advance of any event, a traffic management has also been produced including 
a 5mph speed limit and guests will be advised to access the site via A66/A594 
only. 
  
The applicant then explained the intention to work with local businesses within 
the hospitality industry including hotels and taxi companies. 
 
Members then asked questions of the applicant, in relation to noise pollution, 
water and toilet facilities. The applicant confirmed that the noise limiter will 

Page 28



ensure sound does not reach above the agreed decibel limit and drinking water 
and hired portaloos will be brought to the site. 
 
Further questions came in relation to transport and car parking, the applicant 
explained that 25-50 hardstanding car parking places would be created with 
guests encourages to attend the event using pre booked taxi/coach hire. The 
car park will also be managed by a supervisor and include sufficient lighting. 
 
The panel then heard representations on behalf of residents, from Councillor 
Nicky Cockburn. 
 
Councillor Cockburn was objecting on behalf of the residents in relation to 
noise, transport and car park issues and loss of amenity. 
 
In relation to noise, the noise report was undertaken during haytime/bailing so is 
not a fair reflection of the background noise on site. Vehicle noise is also a 
concern, not only from vehicles using the car park but from commercial and 
large vehicles, including noise which comes from reverse alarms. Noise which 
emits live music and the diesel generators are also disruptive factors for 
residents, the latter of which has also not been taken into consideration in the 
report.  
 
Councillor Cockburn went to explain that the car park does not have sufficient 
turning areas and the number of spaces is inadequate, this will lead to vehicles 
parking on public bridleway. 
 
Councillor Cockburn then highlighted concerns in relation to public safety. The 
access roads to the site are not suitable for large vehicles and could cause 
harm to users of the Public Right of Way. 
 
Councillor Cockburn also shared concerns in relation to the number of days the 
venue would be in use, the applicant stated 10-15 per annum, however this 
would increase when loading/unloading of supplies was factored in, thus 
increasing the number of days to 45+ between March and October, further 
increasing vehicle use on inadequate access roads. 
 
Councillor Cockburn summarised the points from the representations and 
highlighted further concerns over the site plans. As part of the summary 
Councillor Cockburn explained that granting of the licence would not only be 
detrimental to public safety and amenity but stated that the area in question is 
not an open mine, but a wildlife area which is registered community asset used 
in great numbers by members of the public. 
 
The second objector (Mary Bradley) spoke on behalf of Broughton Parish 
Council. 
 
The Parish Council accepts diversification however this proposal is unsuitable. 
Mrs Bradley reiterated points raised by Councillor Cockburn in relation to noise, 
access, traffic and the disruption and unsuitability to the bridlepath.  
 
Mrs Bradley explained that access is a major concern to the Parish Council as 
the bridleway is not suitable for increased numbers of vehicles. The bridleway 

Page 29



had deep potholes and would need regular maintenance, which will be the 
responsibility of the landowner and the County Council. Mrs Bradley also 
questioned how taxis would enter and exit site as the bridleway is not suitable 
for more than one vehicle, Mrs Bradley also stated that the introduction of 
passing places would not be feasible, and that she doubts the access would be 
suitable for emergency vehicles. 
 
Planning consent is a concern for the Parish Council as extensive works may 
need to obtain relevant authority.  
 
Mrs Bradley also stated that the area is of community value and has high public 
use.  
 
In summary Mrs Bradley stated that the proposal is not supported by the Parish 
Council and that the Licence should not be granted until all concerns are 
mitigated or eradicated and planning and access issues are resolved.  
 
The Licencing and Compliance Officer provided clarity to members in relation to 
planning issues and that the Licensing application can be determined with or 
without any relevant planning consent. 
 
The applicant (Beth Faulder) then summarised the merits of the application and  
provided a response to the concerns raised by the objectors including noise, 
access and the bridleway in particular concerns raised over maintenance of the 
bridleway. 
 
Further questions were raised from members in relation to the bridleway. 
 
Both objectors then had the opportunity to summarise the points raised in the 
meeting. 
 
The meeting was then adjourned for member deliberations. 
 
The panel considered all information provided including the representations 
from objectors, written representations from Cumbria Constabulary and 
Environmental Health, the applicants and the applicant. The panel also 
considered the relevant legislation. 
 
Councillor Smith moved the to grant the premises licence  
 
The motion was by Councillor Daniels seconded 
 
A vote was taken on the motion 3 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
In making its decision, the Panel had regard to the Licensing Act 2003 and the 
four licensing objectives under that Act: the prevention of crime and disorder, 
public safety, the prevention of public nuisance and the protection of children 
from harm.  The Panel also took into account the responses from Cumbria 

Page 30



Constabulary and Environmental Health following consultation, and the 
representations received from the interested parties.  In addition, the Panel has 
had regard to the information provided by the Applicant and the information set 
out in the report by the Licensing and Compliance Officer. 
 
The Panel considered the Secretary of State’s guidance under section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003, the Council’s Licensing Policy and Human Rights.  
 
The Panel sought to balance the interests of the licence holder and the 
interested parties.   
 
The Panel considered the options available to it, which were: 
 

a) To grant the licence subject to the conditions mentioned in the operating 
schedule, modified to such extent as the authority considers necessary 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and any mandatory 
condition; 

b) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities 
to which the application relates; 

c) To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor; 
d) To reject the application. 

 
The Panel felt that it was reasonable and proportionate to take the following 
steps to promote the licensing objectives: 
 
To grant the licence subject to the conditions mentioned in the operating 
schedule, modified to such extent as the authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives, and any mandatory condition.   
 
This means that the Panel has agreed to: 
 

 grant the licence subject to the following conditions: 
o The conditions proposed by the applicant as outlined in the report, 

as amended by the conditions included at Appendix C as agreed 
with Cumbria Constabulary and the Environmental Health 
Department 

o The mandatory conditions 
o The following additional condition: “A dispersal policy must be put 

in place which requires the presence of a minimum of three traffic 
marshals prior to, during and after any event.  This policy should 
include arrangements for car parking, guiding commercial vehicles 
and emergency access”.  

 
In making its decision, the Panel considered the fact that the Responsible 
Authorities raised no concerns with the amended conditions which have been 
agreed with the applicant.  It also considered the representations made by the 
interested parties and gave sufficient weight to these concerns.  It considers 
that the conditions as outlined are sufficient to promote the licensing objectives. 
 
If any party is aggrieved by this decision, they were advised that they have the 
right to appeal to the Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving written 
notification of the decision. 

Page 31



 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 4.05 pm 
 

Page 32



North & West Cumbria Magistrates' Court-Workington
Code 1752

West Cumbria Court House
Hall Park, Ramsay Brow, Workington, Cumbria. CA14 4AS

Tel: 01900 62244 (Court Admin)  Tel: 01282 610000 (Fines/Enforcement)

ALLERDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL
Allerdale House
Workington
Cumbria
CA14 3YJ

Case number: 032100003506

Orders

The court has heard the matters shown below and made the orders listed.

Justices' Clerk

Keith Townend, Head of Legal Operations (North West )

Date: 27 May 2021

ALLERDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL 28 May 2021//GENORD_37_0/47760/1Page 33



North & West Cumbria Magistrates' Court-Workington
Code 1752

Matters and orders

032100003506/1 
Appeal against a decision of the ALLERDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL licensing authority relating to
Ponderosa Weddings to grant a premises licence under section 18 of the Licensing Act 2003 on the ground
that there are issues with the Noise, Time Periods, Wider Site plan, Planning, Waste/rubbish, HIghways,
Wildlife, Safe access/ egress, Duration/Length of the licence. .
In accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 5 to the Licensing Act 2003.

It is ordered that We are allowing the appeal. The bench had to consider the licensing objectives: 1.
Prevention of crime and disorder 2. Public safety 3 . The prevention of public nuisance 4. The
protection of children from harm All the witnesses we have heard from today were credible and gave
clear accounts of their understanding when question s were put to them. From the evidence given it
has been made clear to this bench the Licensing Aut hority were not in full possession of all the facts
they needed to make an informed decision to grant t he license. The licensing authority had no
evidence that there was permission from the landown er to use the bridleway. Indeed they were not
aware the access route was a bridleway. Further inf ormation has been put forward of a one way
system as access today to the site and the Licensin g Authority has not been able to consider this.
The bench has concerns that public safety is an iss ue and also has some concerns regarding crime
and disorder. There were some discrepnacies made wi th noise issues and assumptions were made
on noise levels at certain properties. The decision  to grant the license is set aside and we remit the
decision back to Allerdale Borough Council with a d irection to start the consultation process afresh.
The consultation will include all statutory consult ees and must also include the Highway
Deptartment, Broughton Moor Parish Council, Brought on Parish Coucil, the landowner of the
bridleway, and any other bodies that use the bridle way, for example the local schools. Consultation
should also take place with the planning department  should the applicaiton for a license include
plans for a hardcore car park. The licensng panel s hould be in possession of the most accurate
information and permissions in order to decide whet her to grant the application. We recognise that
both council's are carrying out public duties with limited budgets. Broughton Parish Council have
incurred expense in properly bringing this appeal a nd we order a contribution to their costs of £300
to be paid to them by Allerdale Borough Council.

ALLERDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL 28 May 2021//GENORD_37_0/47760/2Page 34



 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Proposed Wedding Marquee 
Broughton Moor, Maryport 

 
 

Noise Assessment Report 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
  

 

 

 

 
 
 

         

Page 35



 

 

 

 

 

Project: Proposed Wedding Marquee, Broughton Moor, Maryport 

Client: Miss Beth Faulder 

Project Reference: RSA325/2020 

Report Date: 14 October 2020 

 

Document History 

Version Date Comments Initials 

1 24 August 2020 Draft for comment RS / DS 

2 28 August 2020 Issue for planning RS 

3 14 October 2020 Minor text revision following EHO comments RS 

 
 

Authorised by 
Ryan Swales, BSc, MIOA 

Director & Principal Consultant 

Signature 

 

 

This report takes into account the particular instructions and requirements of 

our client.  It is not intended for and should not be relied upon by any third 

party.  Any such party relies on this report at their own risk. 

 

© Report copyright of RS Acoustic Engineering Ltd 
 
 
RS Acoustic Engineering Ltd 

76 Marple Road 

Stockport 

SK2 5QH 

Tel: 0333 577 5152 

Web: www.rsacoustic.co.uk 

Email: info@rs-acoustic.co.uk 

 

A company registered in England & Wales (No: 07604309) 

Corporate Member of the Institute of Acoustics (MIOA)

Page 36

http://www.rsacoustic.co.uk/
mailto:info@rs-acoustic.co.uk


 

 

 

Proposed Wedding Marquee - Noise Assessment   Page 3 of 17 

Contents 

Section Page 

1. Introduction 4 

2. Assessment Guidance 5 

National Planning Policy Framework 5 

Consultation with Allerdale Borough Council 5 

World Health Organisation: Guidelines for community noise (1999) 5 

British Standard 8233:2014: Guidance on sound insulation and noise reduction for buildings 5 

3. Environmental Noise Survey 6 

Survey methodology 6 

Survey equipment 7 

Weather conditions 7 

Subjective observations of the acoustic environment 7 

Results summary 8 

4. Assessment & Discussion 10 

Site location and nearest noise sensitive receptors 10 

Anticipated sound levels with a live band and amplified music 11 

Noise break-out and resulting sound levels at the nearest dwellings 11 

Noise ingress with windows open 12 

Control of low (bass) frequencies 13 

Recommended noise mitigation measures 13 

Sound levels from vehicles arriving and departing 14 

5. Conclusion 15 

 
List of Tables, Figures & Appendices 

Table 3.1 – Summary of measured background LA90 sound pressure levels 8 

Table 3.2 – Summary of measured ambient LAeq sound pressure levels 8 

 

Figure 3.1 - Site location and survey measurement positions 6 

Figure 3.2 - Photographs showing survey measurement position 7 

Figure 3.3 - Graph showing results of continuous sound level monitoring 9 

Figure 4.1 - Proposed site plan showing marquee and parking location 10 

 

Appendix A - Assessment terminology 16 

 
 

Page 37



 

 

 

Proposed Wedding Marquee - Noise Assessment   Page 4 of 17 

1. Introduction 
1.1 RS Acoustic Engineering has been appointed by Miss Beth Faulder to undertake a noise impact 

assessment with regard to a proposed wedding marquee in Broughton Moor, Maryport, CA15. 

1.2 The marquee will be located in a remote field approximately 1.25 km south east of Broughton Moor. 

1.3 The nearest noise sensitive receptors are Fox House Farm approximately 500 metres north west of 

the proposed marquee location and Glen/Rose Cottages approximately 700 metres south east of 

the proposed marquee location. 

1.4 It is anticipated that there will be approximately 10 to 15 events per year, between the months of 

March and October. The number of guests will vary for each event, however a maximum of 250 

guests are expected at the larger events.  

1.5 It is proposed that the venue will operate between 10:00 and 00:00 hours, with live music occurring 

between 12:00 and 23:00 hours. There will be no amplified live music beyond 23:00 hours. 

1.6 The main sources of noise associated with the venue are anticipated to be amplified music break 

out from the marquee and intermittent vehicle movements from guests arriving and departing. 

1.7 An indicative assessment has been undertaken with regard to amplified music break out from the 

marquee. The resulting sound level at the nearest dwelling has been predicted for a four-piece band 

playing at the venue. 

1.8 This assessment is based on the results of an environmental noise survey undertaken at the site 

over a number of days. Continuous sound level monitoring was conducted during the daytime and 

night-time period in order to establish the prevailing acoustic environment. 

1.9 Discussions have been held with the Environmental Health Department for Allerdale Borough 

Council with regard to the proposals, assessment methodology and potential noise mitigation 

measures. 

1.10 The survey and assessment was conducted by Mr Ryan Swales (BSc(Hons), MIOA), Principal 

Acoustic Consultant and Member of the Institute of Acoustics. 

1.11 This report presents the results of the noise survey, predicted music noise levels, impact and 

recommendations regarding noise mitigation (control) measures. 

 

Page 38



 

 

 

Proposed Wedding Marquee - Noise Assessment   Page 5 of 17 

2. Assessment Guidance 

National Planning Policy Framework 

2.1 With regard to noise and pollution, Section 15 of the NPPF states the following: 

Planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment 
by: preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at unacceptable risk 
from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution or land 
instability.... 

Planning policies and decisions should also ensure that new development is appropriate for its 
location taking into account the likely effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, 
living conditions and the natural environment, as well as the potential sensitivity of the site or the 
wider area to impacts that could arise from the development. In doing so they should: 

a) mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse impacts resulting from noise from new 
development – and avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health and the quality 
of life; 

b) identify and protect tranquil areas which have remained relatively undisturbed by noise and are 
prized for their recreational and amenity value for this reason. 

Consultation with Allerdale Borough Council 

2.2 The Environmental Health Department for Allerdale Borough Council were contacted in July and 

August 2020 to discuss the proposals, survey/assessment methodology and potential noise control 

measures for the venue. 

2.3 It was agreed that an assessment of external and internal noise levels should be undertaken and 

an appropriate criterion was considered to be where the music sound level does not exceed the 

lowest ambient LAeq sound level at the nearest noise sensitive receptors (dwellings). 

2.4 It was also stated that the low (bass) frequencies and overall sound level should be controlled so 

as not to exceed those already existing. The use of a noise limiter was discussed and it was agreed 

that such a device would be necessary for the venue. 

World Health Organisation: Guidelines for community noise (1999) 

2.5 The recently superseded guidance document states that to avoid serious annoyance during the 

daytime and evening period, the ambient sound level should not exceed 55 dB LAeq,16hour in outdoor 

living areas. To avoid moderate annoyance, the sound level should not exceed 50 dB LAeq,16hour. 

2.6 To help avoid sleep disturbance during the night-time, the ambient LAeq sound level should not 

exceed 30 dB LAeq,8hour within bedrooms and the maximum level should not typically exceed 45 dB 

LAFmax,T more than 10-15 times per night. 

British Standard 8233:2014: Guidance on sound insulation and noise 

reduction for buildings 

2.7 BS 8233 provides guidance regarding acoustic criteria and noise levels appropriate for various types 

of space that have different functions. With regard to dwellings, the guideline values take into 

consideration the effect of internal noise on sleep and also the effect of noise on resting, listening 

and communicating. 

2.8 The standard recommends an ambient noise limit of 35 dB LAeq,16hour within bedrooms and living 

rooms during the daytime and a noise limit of 30 dB LAeq,8hour within bedrooms during the night-time. 

Page 39



 

 

 

Proposed Wedding Marquee - Noise Assessment   Page 6 of 17 

3. Environmental Noise Survey 

Survey methodology 

3.1 Continuous sound level monitoring was conducted over a 49-hour period at Fox House Farm, 

approximately 500 metres north west of the proposed marquee location. 

3.2 The measurement location was considered to be the most secure with regard to leaving the 

equipment unattended over an extended period. 

3.3 Measurements were performed from 13:30 hours on Saturday 11th through to 14:30 hours on 

Monday 13th July 2020. The microphone was tripod mounted at a height of approximately 1.2 metres 

from the ground. 

3.4 Several sample measurements were also conducted adjacent to Glen Cottage and Rose Cottage, 

approximately 700 metres south east of the proposed marquee location. 

3.5 A measurement interval of 15 minutes was used during the survey and measurements were subject 

to free-field conditions (away from reflective surfaces). Both one-third octave band and A-weighted 

broadband sound pressure levels were recorded during the survey. 

3.6 Sound pressure level measurements are taken with an A-weighting (denoted by a subscript ‘A’, e.g. 

LAeq) to approximate the frequency response of the human ear. 

3.7 The site location, surrounding area and survey measurement positions are shown in Figure 3.1. 

Figure 3.1 – Site location and survey measurement positions (source: Google Earth) 

 

3.8 The photographs overleaf also show the survey measurement positions. 

 

 

 

 

Continuous noise monitoring 
on 

Proposed marquee 
location 

Cottages 

Farm/dwelling 

Sample measurement 

Page 40



 

 

 

Proposed Wedding Marquee - Noise Assessment   Page 7 of 17 

 Figure 3.2 – Photographs showing survey measurement positions 

     

Survey equipment 

3.9 The survey was conducted using the following equipment:  

 BrÜel & Kjaer 2250-Light data logging sound level meter, with microphone type 4189 and 

pre-amplifier type ZC0032. 

 BrÜel & Kjaer 2260 sound level meter, with microphone type 4189 and pre-amplifier type 

ZC0032. 

 BrÜel & Kjaer 4231 acoustic calibrator. 

3.10 Calibration of the sound level meter and microphone used for the measurements are traceable to 

UKAS accredited laboratories. 

3.11 The calibration of both sound level meter and microphone was checked using a 1 kHz tone at 94 dB 

prior to and following the measurements performed. The drift in calibration was less than 0.1 dB. 

Weather conditions 

3.12 The weather conditions during the survey were generally dry and fine with clear sunny spells.  

3.13 The air temperature during the survey ranged between 11ᵒC and 21ᵒC and the wind speeds 

measured on site were less than 3 m/s-1.  

3.14 There were a number of intermittent showers over the weekend period, however the overall weather 

conditions were considered suitable to obtain representative measurements. 

Subjective observations of the acoustic environment 

3.15 The dominant source of noise at the site is a combination of road traffic on Seaton Road, Moor 

Road, the A594 to the north east and the distant A66 to the south. 

3.16 Other noted noise sources include farm related vehicles, intermittent farm activity, livestock and 

occasional birdsong. 

3.17 During the survey, there was hay bailing associated with Fox House Farm which occurred during 

the early hours of Monday morning. The activity was responsible for the increase in ambient noise 

level.  

  

Page 41



 

 

 

Proposed Wedding Marquee - Noise Assessment   Page 8 of 17 

Results summary 

3.18 Table 3.1 presents a summary of the measured background LA90 sound pressure levels. The 

measured values have been rounded to the nearest whole number. 

3.19 The daytime period is considered to be between 07:00 and 23:00 hours and the night-time period 

between 23:00 and 07:00 hours. 

Table 3.1 – Summary of measured background LA90 sound pressure levels 

Date 
Period 

(T, Hours) 
Typical1 

LA90,15min dB 
Lowest 

LA90,15min dB 
Highest 

LA90,15min dB 

Saturday 
11/07/2020 to 

Sunday 
12/07/2020 

Daytime 
13:30 - 23:00 

38 27 41 

Night-time 
23:00 - 00:00 

26 26 27 

Night-time 
23:00 - 07:00 

26 23 30 

Sunday 
12/07/2020 to 

Monday 
13/07/2020 

Daytime 
07:00 - 23:00 

37 30 42 

Night-time 
23:00 - 00:00 

34 34 36 

Night-time 
23:00 - 07:00 

34 29 53 

Monday 
13/07/2020 

Daytime 
07:00 - 14:30 

36 34 44 

1The most frequently occurring value or modal value (i.e. from a statistical analysis) 

 
3.20 Table 3.2 presents a summary of the measured ambient LAeq sound pressure levels. 

Table 3.2 – Summary of measured ambient LAeq sound pressure levels 

Date 
Period 

(T, Hours) 
Average 
LAeq,T dB 

Lowest 
LAeq,15min dB 

Highest 
LAeq,15min dB 

Saturday 
11/07/2020 to 

Sunday 
12/07/2020 

Daytime 
13:30 - 23:00 

55 29 68 

Night-time 
23:00 - 00:00 

29 29 30 

Night-time 
23:00 - 07:00 

40 24 51 

Sunday 
12/07/2020 to 

Monday 
13/07/2020 

Daytime 
07:00 - 23:00 

51 37 64 

Night-time 
23:00 - 00:00 

40 39 42 

Night-time 
23:00 - 07:00 

59 39 67 

Monday 
13/07/2020 

Daytime 
07:00 - 14:30 

54 43 63 

 

Page 42



 

 

 

Proposed Wedding Marquee - Noise Assessment   Page 9 of 17 

3.21 The equivalent continuous (ambient) sound level ranged between 29 to 68 dB LAeq,15min during the 

daytime and 24 to 67 dB LAeq,15min during the night-time. 

3.22 In terms of ‘hourly’ ambient sound levels, the equivalent continuous sound level ranged between 30 

to 62 dB LAeq,60min during the daytime and 27 to 65 dB LAeq,60min during the night-time. 

3.23 On the quieter Saturday evening, the equivalent continuous sound level ranged between 30 to 

33 dB LAeq,15min between 21:00 to 22:00 hours (the equivalent hourly level was 32 dB LAeq,60min). 

3.24 Between 22:00 to 23:00 hours, the equivalent continuous sound level ranged between 29 to 31 dB 

LAeq,15min (the equivalent hourly level was 30 dB LAeq,60min) and between 23:00 to 00:00 hours, the 

equivalent continuous sound level ranged between 29 to 30 dB LAeq,15min (the equivalent hourly level 

was 29 dB LAeq,60min). 

3.25 The results of the continuous monitoring are also presented graphically in Figure 3.3. 

3.26 It is worth noting that the ‘maximum’ sound levels ranged between 42 to 91 dB LAFmax,15min during 

the daytime and between 33 to 86 dB LAFmax,15min during the night-time. 

Figure 3.3 – Graph showing results of continuous sound level monitoring 

 

Sample measurements at Glen and Rose Cottages 

3.27 The results of the sample measurements conducted near to the cottages indicate an equivalent 

continuous sound pressure level of approximately 56 to 57 dB LAeq,15min during the afternoon period. 

3.28 During the same time period, the corresponding sound pressure level at Fox House Farm was 

approximately 46 dB LAeq,15min. The ambient LAeq sound pressure level is therefore approximately 

10 dB higher at the cottages (compared to the farm) during the afternoon period. 

3.29 The higher ambient levels experienced at the cottages are due to the proximity of passing road 

traffic heading into and out of Little Broughton. The sound level difference will gradually reduce 

during the evening period when road traffic flow reduces.  

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

11
/0

7/20
20 0

9:36

11
/0

7/20
20 1

2:00

11
/0

7/20
20 1

4:24

11
/0

7/20
20 1

6:48

11
/0

7/20
20 1

9:12

11
/0

7/20
20 2

1:36

12
/0

7/20
20 0

0:00

12
/0

7/20
20 0

2:24

12
/0

7/20
20 0

4:48

12
/0

7/20
20 0

7:12

12
/0

7/20
20 0

9:36

12
/0

7/20
20 1

2:00

12
/0

7/20
20 1

4:24

12
/0

7/20
20 1

6:48

12
/0

7/20
20 1

9:12

12
/0

7/20
20 2

1:36

13
/0

7/20
20 0

0:00

13
/0

7/20
20 0

2:24

13
/0

7/20
20 0

4:48

13
/0

7/20
20 0

7:12

13
/0

7/20
20 0

9:36

13
/0

7/20
20 1

2:00

13
/0

7/20
20 1

4:24

13
/0

7/20
20 1

6:48
A

-W
e

ig
h

te
d

 S
o

u
n

d
 P

re
ss

u
re

 L
e

ve
l (

d
B

)

Date : Time

Results of continuous sound level monitoring

LAeq

LA90

Page 43



 

 

 

Proposed Wedding Marquee - Noise Assessment   Page 10 of 17 

4. Assessment & Discussion 

Site location and nearest noise sensitive receptors 

4.1 The nearest noise sensitive receptors are Fox House Farm approximately 500 metres north west of 

the proposed marquee location and Glen/Rose Cottages approximately 700 metres south east of 

the proposed marquee location. 

4.2 The village of Broughton Moor is approximately 1.25 km north west of the proposed site location. 

4.3 There is no direct line-of-sight between the site location and the nearest dwellings due to the 

variation in topography. However, this assessment assumes that there is a direct line-of-sight 

between the noise source and receptor (i.e. no acoustic screening provided by the landscape). 

4.4 Figure 4.1 shows the proposed site plan, approximate marquee location and site parking area.  

Figure 4.1 – Proposed site plan showing marquee and parking location 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Site parking 

Proposed marquee 
location 

Page 44



 

 

 

Proposed Wedding Marquee - Noise Assessment   Page 11 of 17 

Anticipated sound levels with a live band and amplified music 

4.5 Based on our experience of undertaking similar assessments, it is anticipated that the equivalent 

continuous sound pressure level within the marquee will be in the region of 80 to 90 dB LAeq,60sec 

with a live four-piece band playing (e.g. drums, guitar, keyboard and vocalist). 

4.6 Similar sound pressure levels are also likely to be generated by a DJ using an amplified music and 

PA system. 

4.7 Sound pressure levels from acoustic instruments and solo performances are expected to be in the 

region of 75 to 85 dB LAeq,60sec. 

4.8 Higher sound levels (e.g. 90 to 100 dB LAeq,60sec) are commonplace in venues such as bars and 

nightclubs, however, music sound levels at family functions such as weddings are expected to be 

notably below this level range, particularly where young children and elderly relatives are present. 

4.9 For this assessment, it is considered appropriate to use the sound pressure levels previously 

measured for a four-piece rock band. 

4.10 The microphone was positioned approximately 1 metre from the raised stage and the venue was a 

large function room. An equivalent continuous sound pressure level of approximately 88 dB LAeq,60sec 

was typical during the performance.  

4.11 A reference sound pressure level of 88 dB LAeq,60sec is considered appropriate for this assessment. 

4.12 It is assumed that music will play continuously for a given 15-minute period and therefore a 

correction or reduction is unnecessary with regard to the measured source level. In practice, the 

source sound level will reduce slightly when there is a period of no music within the 15-minute 

reference period. 

4.13 The instantaneous ‘maximum’ sound pressure level can be approximately 10 dB higher than the 

LAeq sound pressure level (e.g. 98 dB LAFmax,60sec). 

Noise break-out and resulting sound levels at the nearest dwellings 

4.14 It is anticipated that the marquee will provide little by way of sound insulation since the fabric is 

relatively thin and lightweight (i.e. low mass). 

4.15 In practice, a degree of sound attenuation will occur at the mid to high frequencies, however for this 

assessment it is considered prudent to assume that the marquee will provide negligible sound 

attenuation. 

Sound attenuation due to distance separation 

4.16 Taking into consideration the large separation distances involved, it is considered appropriate to 

determine the level of sound attenuation due to distance using standard acoustic principals for a 

point source. 

4.17 The level of sound attenuation due to distance separation has therefore been estimated using the 

following equation: 

 20log (1 metre/500 metres) = -54 dB 

4.18 With regard to the cottages to the south west, the level of sound attenuation due to distance 

separation is estimated to be approximately 57 dB. 

 20log (1 metre/700 metres) = -57 dB 

4.19 The calculation above assumes that the intervening ground between the source and receptor is a 

‘hard’ reflective surface (such as concrete or asphalt). However, in this instance the intervening 

ground is predominantly soft grassland (porous ground) and therefore an appropriate factor for 

ground attenuation should also be included. 

Page 45



 

 

 

Proposed Wedding Marquee - Noise Assessment   Page 12 of 17 

4.20 To determine an appropriate ground attenuation value, the following equation has been used (ref: 

ISO 9613-2, para 7.3.2): 

 Agr = 4.8 – (2hm/d)[17 + (300/d)] ≥ 0 dB where hm is the mean height of the propagation path 

above ground and d is the distance from source to receptor. 

4.21 On this basis, the level of ground attenuation is approximately 5 dB. 

4.22 Since the noise source will generate notable energy at low frequencies, sound attenuation due to 

atmospheric absorption is considered negligible (<1 dB). 

4.23 The total level of sound attenuation over 500 metres is therefore approximately 59 dB. 

4.24 Assuming the live band (or DJ) generates a source sound level of 88 dB LAeq,15min inside the 

marquee, at a distance of 500 metres the sound level reduces to approximately 29 dB LAeq,15min. 

4.25 At a distance of 700 metres the music sound level reduces to approximately 26 dB LAeq,15min. 

4.26 The results of the survey indicate that the equivalent continuous sound level ranged between 29 to 

33 dB LAeq,15min from 21:00 to 23:00 hours (the equivalent hourly level was 30 to 32 dB LAeq,60min). 

4.27 Between 23:00 to 00:00 hours, the equivalent continuous sound level ranged between 29 to 30 dB 

LAeq,15min and the equivalent hourly level was 29 dB LAeq,60min. 

4.28 The predicted music sound level at the nearest dwelling (Fox House Farm) is therefore marginally 

below the lowest hourly sound level of 30 dB LAeq,60min and of similar magnitude to the lowest 15-

minute sound level of 29 dB LAeq,15min (between 22:00 and 23:00 hours). 

4.29 With regard to the ‘maximum’ instantaneous sound level, it is reasonable to assume a sound level 

of approximately 39 dB LAFmax at the nearest dwelling due to amplified music. 

4.30 The measured maximum sound levels ranged between 42 and 91 dB LAFmax,15min during the daytime 

and therefore the predicted sound level is below the prevailing sound levels. 

4.31 On the basis of this assessment, break-out sound levels due to amplified music and/or live bands 

are considered unlikely to cause undue disturbance or annoyance at the nearest dwellings. 

4.32 In addition, the existing daytime sound level is approximately 51 to 55 dB LAeq,16hour at the nearest 

dwelling when averaged over a 16-hour period. The prevailing sound levels fall within the WHO 

guideline values of 50 to 55 dB LAeq,16hour for outdoor living areas (gardens).  

4.33 The predicted music sound level is considerably below the lower guideline value of 50 dB LAeq,16hour. 

Noise ingress with windows open 

4.34 The level of sound attenuation through an open window is dependent on the type and size of 

window, the extent of opening, the angle of sound incidence and the acoustic characteristics of the 

source in question. It is considered reasonable to assume that an open window will provide 

approximately 10 to 15 dB of sound attenuation. 

4.35 Assuming a source sound level of 88 dB LAeq,15min is generated inside the marquee, at a distance of 

500 metres the music sound level reduces to approximately 29 dB LAeq,15min. 

4.36 Taking into consideration the sound attenuation provided by an open window, the resulting internal 

sound pressure level is expected to be in the region of 14 to 19 dB LAeq,15min. 

4.37 The recommended ambient sound level limits are 35 dB LAeq,16hour for bedrooms and living rooms 

during the daytime and 30 dB LAeq,8hour for bedrooms during the night-time (BS 8233:2014 and WHO 

guidelines). 

4.38 The predicted internal sound level is therefore notably below the recommended limits for habitable 

rooms. 

Page 46



 

 

 

Proposed Wedding Marquee - Noise Assessment   Page 13 of 17 

Control of low (bass) frequencies  

4.39 At this stage, it is recommended that the music sound pressure level does not exceed the existing 

ambient sound level in the 63 and 125 Hz octave bands at the nearest dwellings. 

4.40 During the late evening period, the sound pressure level can be between 20 and 30 dB Leq in each 

octave band and therefore particular consideration will need to be given to the reduction of low/bass 

frequencies during the late evening period. 

4.41 An electronic sound limiter with a fine tonal adjustment will therefore be required to ensure that the 

low/bass frequencies are kept at an appropriate level. 

4.42 It is recommended that the appropriate noise limiter setting is determined prior to the first event. An 

amplified PA system and pre-recorded music could be used to provide an approximate setting 

(which could be adjusted as required). 

Recommended noise mitigation measures 

Sound level limiter 

4.43 At this stage, it is recommended that the music sound level within the marquee is restricted (limited) 

to an absolute limit of 88 dB LAeq,60sec. 

4.44 It should be noted that the sound level limiter should not be readjusted and/or the associated 

electrical supply should not be bypassed by any performing musicians and/or DJ. 

4.45 Although it may be permissible to set the limiter to a slightly higher level (e.g. 90 dB LAeq,60sec) for 

the afternoon and early evening period when ambient sound levels are generally higher, it is 

recommended that the limiter is set prior to the event and is not further adjusted later in the day. 

4.46 The local Environmental Health Officer and/or appropriately qualified Acoustic Consultant can 

provide assistance with regard to the setting of the limiter and the measurement of ambient noise. 

4.47 As well as helping to protect the amenity of neighbouring dwellings, controlling the sound level within 

the venue will help to protect the hearing of guests and employees as well as providing a consistent 

and comfortable acoustic environment for both guests and performing musicians. 

4.48 In addition to adjusting the overall LAeq sound level, an appropriate sound limiter will also allow the 

fine adjustment of tonal content (i.e. bass and treble frequencies). 

4.49 As an example, common sound limiters used within entertainment venues include the Formula 

Sound Sentry Mk2 and NLX SL2000 limiter. 

 http://formula-sound.co.uk/system-protection-noise-control/ 

 http://www.soundlimiters.co.uk/www.soundlimiters.co.uk/info.php?p=3&pid=2540785&ack

=9 

Stage and loudspeaker orientation 

4.50 It is recommended that the loudspeakers and/or stage are orientated so that they face in an easterly 

direction. 

4.51 Loudspeaker sound radiation becomes increasingly directional at the mid to high frequencies 

(creating a beam type radiation pattern) and therefore orientating the loudspeakers away from the 

direction of dwellings will help to reduce the overall noise level experienced at the dwelling. 

 

  

Page 47

http://formula-sound.co.uk/system-protection-noise-control/
http://www.soundlimiters.co.uk/www.soundlimiters.co.uk/info.php?p=3&pid=2540785&ack=9
http://www.soundlimiters.co.uk/www.soundlimiters.co.uk/info.php?p=3&pid=2540785&ack=9


 

 

 

Proposed Wedding Marquee - Noise Assessment   Page 14 of 17 

Sound levels from vehicles arriving and departing 

4.52 The operator expects local bus/coach trips to be arranged for each event which will help to minimise 

the number of vehicles arriving and departing from the site.  

4.53 However, for this assessment it is considered appropriate to assume that approximately 60 vehicles 

could potentially arrive/depart from the venue (assuming three to four passengers per vehicle). 

4.54 Previous sample measurements of a family-sized car manoeuvring within a small car park indicate 

an equivalent continuous sound level of approximately 60 dB LAeq,30secs. 

4.55 With door closures and an engine start included, the equivalent continuous sound level increased 

to approximately 65 dB LAeq,30secs. 

4.56 If it is assumed that approximately 30 vehicles arrive or depart over a 15-minute period (2 per 

minute) and the source sound level is relatively consistent, the resulting sound level is expected to 

be approximately 65 dB LAeq,15min. 

4.57 Vehicles are a moving noise source and therefore the distance from the source to the receptor will 

continuously vary. 

Resulting sound level at Fox House Farm 

4.58 It is considered appropriate to use a separation distance of approximately 400 metres to represent 

the separation distance between the centre of the parking area and the nearest dwelling (Fox House 

Farm). 

4.59 Taking into consideration the level of sound attenuation due to distance separation (circa 52 dB), 

the resulting equivalent continuous sound pressure level is expected to be in the region of 13 dB 

LAeq,15min at the farm. 

4.60 The predicted sound level is therefore significantly below the lowest existing ambient sound level 

during the proposed operating hours (29 dB LAeq,15min). 

4.61 On this basis, intermittent noise due to vehicles arriving and departing is expected to have a 

negligible impact at Fox House Farm. 

Resulting sound level at Glen and Rose Cottage 

4.62 It is considered appropriate to use a separation distance of approximately 900 metres to represent 

the separation distance between the centre of the parking area and the nearest cottages to the 

south east. 

4.63 Taking into consideration the level of sound attenuation due to distance separation (circa 59 dB), 

the resulting equivalent continuous sound pressure level is expected to be in the region of 6 dB 

LAeq,15min at the cottages. 

4.64 The predicted sound level is therefore significantly below the lowest existing ambient sound level 

during the proposed operating hours. 

4.65 On this basis, intermittent noise due to vehicles arriving and departing is expected to have a 

negligible impact at Glen and Rose Cottages. 

 

 

 

Page 48



 

 

 

Proposed Wedding Marquee - Noise Assessment   Page 15 of 17 

5. Conclusion 
5.1 The predicted amplified music sound level at the nearest dwelling (Fox House Farm) is marginally 

below the lowest hourly sound level of 30 dB LAeq,60min and of similar magnitude to the lowest 15-

minute measurement (29 dB LAeq,15min). 

5.2 The resulting sound level due to amplified music is considered unlikely to cause undue disturbance 

or annoyance at the nearest dwellings. 

5.3 At the nearest dwellings, the predicted music sound level is considerably below the lower WHO 

guideline value of 50 dB LAeq,16hour for outdoor living areas (gardens). 

5.4 With windows open, the predicted internal sound level is notably below the BS 8233:2014 and WHO 

recommended noise limits for habitable rooms. 

5.5 It is recommended that the music sound pressure level does not exceed the existing ambient sound 

level in the 63 and 125 Hz octave bands at the nearest dwellings. 

5.6 A sound limiter with a fine tonal adjustment will be required to ensure that the overall sound level 

and also the low/bass frequencies are appropriately controlled. 

5.7 It is recommended that the loudspeakers and/or stage are orientated so that they face in an easterly 

direction. 

5.8 Intermittent noise due to vehicles arriving and departing is expected to have a negligible impact at 

the nearest dwellings. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49



 

 

 

Proposed Wedding Marquee - Noise Assessment                                                                                             Page 16 of 17 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Appendix A 

Assessment terminology 
  

Page 50



 

 

 

Proposed Wedding Marquee - Noise Assessment                                                                                             Page 17 of 17 

  Assessment terminology 

Term Description 

dB (decibel) 
The scale on which sound pressure level is expressed. It is defined as 20 times 
the logarithm of the ratio between the root-mean-square pressure of the sound 
field and a reference pressure (2x10-5Pa). 

dB(A) 

The most widely used weighting mechanism that best corresponds to the response 
of the human ear is the ‘A’-weighting scale. This is widely used for environmental 
noise measurement, and the levels are denoted as dB(A) or LAeq, LA90 etc, 
according to the parameter being measured. 

Acoustic 
environment 

Sound from all sources as modified by the environment. 

Ambient sound 
level 

The totally encompassing sound in a given situation at a given time; it is usually 
composed of sound from many sources, near and far. 

Equivalent 
continuous 
sound level - 

LAeq,T 

The A-weighted equivalent continuous sound pressure level over a period of time, 
T. Representative of the average sound pressure level over a given period and 
commonly referred to as the ‘ambient’ sound level. 

Maximum sound 

level - LAFmax,T 
The A-weighted ‘maximum’ sound pressure level that occurred during a given 
period, T (commonly used for the assessment of intermittent loud noises). 

Background 
sound level - 

LA90,T 

The sound pressure level that is exceeded for 90% of the measurement time 
interval, T.  LA90,T is used to describe the ‘background’ sound level. 

Rw 
The weighted sound reduction index expressed in dB. A single number quantity 
for airborne sound insulation rating. 

Free-field level 

A sound field determined at a point away from reflective surfaces other than the 
ground with no significant contributions due to sound from other significant 
reflective surfaces. Generally as measured outside and away from buildings 
(>3.5metres). 

 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



Use of Land For Wedding Venue 
Ponderosa Weddings 




Page 53



1.  INTRODUCTION 

1.1	 This document is to provide information to support the application for licensing for        

 the use of agricultural land at Ponderosa, Broughton Moor, Cockermouth for the  

 use as a wedding venue. The weddings would be held on a weekend.


1.2. 	 As can be seen below, the land lies between Broughton Moor and Little    

 Broughton: 




1.3 Access is readily available from the adjacent road. 

1.4 The land is part of a farm unit which is farmed by the applicant for crops and   

 sheep.  

Proposed Site

Page 54



2. Proposed Use 

2.1 The proposed use will allow the venue to be licensed for weddings. The weddings  

 will be held on the land with the opportunity to use a marquee, tent or tipi etc for a 

 more informal setting taking advantage of the views and the natural features on   

 the land including the pond and jetty. 

2.2 It is antiquated that up to 10 weddings could be accommodated in any calendar  

 year for the first five years. The land would be rented out to couples for their   

 celebrations. 

2.3 The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)(England) Order  

 2015 allows for the use of land for any purposes for not more than 28 days in total  

 in any calendar year, subsequently planning permission is not required for the use  

 at the current level proposed.  

Page 55



3. Benefits of the Proposals 

3.1  Farming is central to the rural economy of Cumbria and directly employs over   

 12,000 in the sector throughout the county. Farming not only contributes to the   

 production of food and crops but also creates the landscape which underpins the  

 visitor economy in the area. Farms are therefore a key element of the success of   

 Cumbria into the future. 

3.2 The uncertainty over the UK’s exit from the EU and the impact on the removal of   

 the EU Common Agricultural Policy has resulted in serious consideration having to  

 be given to the financial future of the farm and ensure that the farm retains a   

 future. It is important that farms of various sizes including family run farms such as  

 this one are retained within the overall offer of agriculture as this directly supports  

 the local economy. 

3.3 The proposals have been developed in order to diversify the income streams of the 

 farm. A diversified income stream will help to secure the long term future of the   

 farming business and increase the business’ resilience as the uncertainty caused   

 by Brexit increases. Diversification schemes are becoming increasingly critical to   

 support farming with 65% of farms in England now having some diversification   

 scheme in place (Defra stat 2018/19).  

3.4 The ability to hire out the land for weddings and the provision of that use by the   

 erection of temporary structures will ensure that the new use will not prejudice the  

 viable operations on the wider farm whilst supporting the wider agricultural unit. As 

 the use is not permanent it will ensure that the wider farm can continue to operate  

 as normal and secure employment on the farm. 

Page 56



3.3 The benefits of providing a wedding venue which is not permanent in relation to  

 buildings on site is that any impacts are temporary on whilst the wedding is   

 ongoing. Following the removal of the temporary structures, there are no further  

 impacts on the landscape or the amenity of other landowners in the vicinity, the   

 impacts are therefore limited and transitory.  

3.4 The provision of a wedding venue in this stunning location will add to the range of  

 wedding venues throughout Allerdale. It will allow weddings to be bespoke to the  

 couple who are marrying and encourage the use of local services to be provided to 

 the wedding party which will aid in the ongoing support of the local economy,   

 particularly as the economy remains affected by recession and the impacts of   

 Brexit are unclear. This is important for wider suppliers to events and also for   

 accommodation in the area for the wedding guests. The benefit to the wider rural  

 economy therefore is not unsubstantial. 

3.5 The applicant has noted concerns over noise impacts and has employed a noise   

 specialist to provide a noise management plan. The plan includes mitigation in   

 relation to the levels that music should be played at, orientation of speakers, and  

 timing of music when events are on. It is considered that this will ensure that   

 amenity is protected.  

3.6 The appointment of the noise consultant underlines the responsible actions which  

 are been taken by then landowners in order to ensure that the business is    

 appropriately run. 

Page 57



4.  Conclusion 

4.1 The proposed use brings benefits to both the farm by providing it with a diversified 

 income stream and therefore securing its ongoing financial viability and enabling  

 the retention of rural jobs and also the wider local economy through the use of   

 local services for events and local guest accommodation, in addition, it will add to  

 the varied wedding spaces available throughout the local area. 

Page 58



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Revised Procedure at Licensing Panel Meetings 
 

April 2014 
 
Once the Chair has moved the exemption paragraph the press and public will 
leave the room. 
 
Procedure 
 
Step 1 
 
The Chair will ask those present to introduce themselves and explain the 
procedure to be followed.  
 
Step 2 
 
The Chair will ask the author of the report (or their substitute) to outline the 
proposal and the background to the case.  Their role will be to provide factual 
information to the panel. 
 
The Chair invites members of the panel to ask the presenting officer any 
questions they may have about the application. 
 
Step 3 
 
The Chair invites the applicant or the applicant’s representative to address the 
panel on the merits of their application.  The applicant or the applicant’s 
representative is permitted a maximum of 10 minutes.  In the case of review 
applications all speakers are permitted an equal amount of time.  
 
The Chair asks if any member of the panel/officers present have any 
questions to ask the applicant or the applicant’s representative. 
 
Step 4 
 
The Chair invites any party making representations (including any other 
persons who have been given permission to participate (if any) to present 
their comments(s).  This may include Councillors who have submitted written 
representations on the application within the requisite timescale. 
 
The Chair asks if any members of the panel have any questions to ask any 
party making representations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59

Agenda Annex



Step 5 
 
The Chair offers the applicant or the applicant’s representative the final 
opportunity to address the panel.  The applicant or the applicant’s 
representative is permitted a maximum of 10 minutes.  In the case of a review 
application all speakers will be allowed an equal amount of time.  
 
Step 6 
 
The Chair will ask the parties to withdraw so that the panel can consider its 
determination. In considering its determination, the panel may seek advice 
from its Legal Adviser.  
 
Step 7 
 
The parties will be re-called and informed of the Panel’s decision. 
 

 Applicant to be advised that the decision will be confirmed in writing 
within seven days 
 

 Applicant to be advised of any appeal procedure 
 
All parties will leave swiftly prior to the next case. 

Page 60


	Agenda
	5 To consider representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence
	Appendix 2 for To consider representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence
	Sheets and Views
	Location Plan - 2500


	Ponderosa Conditions App B
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4 for To consider representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence
	Appendix 5 for To consider representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence
	Appendix 6 for To consider representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence
	Appendix 7 for To consider representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence
	Appendix 8 for To consider representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence
	Appendix 9 for To consider representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence
	Appendix 10 for To consider representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence
	Appendix 11 for To consider representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence

	 Procedure at Licensing Panel

